Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners’ Meeting
April 8, 2014

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tucsday, April 8, 2014 at 7:00 pm, at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioners Carolyn Casey, Tim Fowler,
Charles Salter and Eber Warren.

MEMBERS ABSENT:

OTHERS PRESENT: Dennis Humenik- Planning Board Chairman, Kenny Heath — County
Commissioner, Richard Skreba, Ron Seegan, Carolyn Braly - Town Clerk and Catherine Hurm
— Town Manager

Mayor Potter called the meeting to order by having a moment of silence.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revisions to the proposed agenda. Commissioner
Fowler requested that Dennis Humenik who had signed up for Public Comments be added to the
agenda. It was suggested that Planning Board be placed on the agenda under Commissioner
Fowler who could then turn the floor over to Mr. Humenik. Commission Warren motioned to
accept the agenda as amended. All ayes. Motion passed.

Commissioner Fowler made a motion to accept the minutes from the March 11, 2014 meeting.
All ayes. Motion passed.

Public Comments:

County Commissioner Kenny Heath offered an update on the county budget. Mr. Heath advised
the county was not going to go after a property tax increase since sales tax revenues were up and
they anticipated an additional increase with new businesses that were coming to the county, ie,
Walgreens, Taco Bell, Kentucky Fried Chicken and Wal-Mart. Commissioner Salter inquired
about the polling issue. Mr. Heath stated he keeps checking and it has not shown up on the
agenda so to the best of his knowledge it will be at the fire station.

Ron Seegan commented regarding dumping and speeding. Mr. Seegan advised he has a
neighbor who has been taking yard debris and dumping it onto a vacant lot on Pinewood. He
noted that this individual has a lot beside his property and does not clean the debris from this lot
which then blows onto Mr. Seegans’ lot. Mr. Seegan expressed concern that the speeding on
Iakeshore is getting ridiculous. Mr. Seegan noted the biggest offenders seem to be commercial
vehicles — UPS, FedEx and the trash collector but there still seems to be an issue with the golfers
speeding. Mr. Seegan said the boat in his driveway was keyed and when the Sheriff’s office
responded he also spoke to them about the speeding. The deputy had told him they could sit
someone there periodically to request people to slow down. Mr. Seegan felt the speeding was a
continuous issuc that becomes more relevant at various times and requested the BOC address the
matter. Commissioner Salter inquired if there was a particular time period when it was more
noticeable. Mr. Seegan advised it was most noticeable in the morning during business hours and

lofd



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commmissioners’ Meeting
April 8, 2014

when people left the golf course. Mayor Potter noted he had spoken with Mr. Seegan privately
regarding the dumping issue and commented with the limited resources of the Sheriff’s Dept.
speeding in Minnesott Beach would not be a priority. Mayor Potter said they could speak to the
Sheriff’s Dept. about periodically monitoring the speeds on Lakeshore.

Town Manager’s Report: Zoning Permit #4-14-1 approved 4/7/14, for Daniel Oliver, 585
Phillips Drive, to construct a roof over his deck.

Unfinished Business:

Commissioner Salter reported on a 1999 truck the town was considering to purchase and noted it
was no longer available. Commissioner Salter had not been able to locate any other truck but
would continue his search. Commissioner Salter requested the BOC compile a list of
specifications, which could be used by any member in the event they came across a truck that
could be used and would pot require a decision to purchase being placed on hold until a future
meeting. The following specification were set up for a truck: 1999 or newer, price range of
$10,000 (for cach newer year the cost could be increased by $1,000), bed length 14 — 16°, weight
under 26001 lbs., rails - having a cover would be a plus, single axle, diesel fuel preferred,
automatic or manual, 2 speed rear end overdrive, dumps, good tires and general good condition.
Commissioner Heath advised he has utilized govdeals.com which deals only with government
entities. Commissioner Salter said he had been looking on that site but has not been able to
come up with a truck to meet the towns’ needs.

Commissioner Salter noted after talking with a State Trooper, he had gone to DMV and obtained
a new registration for the current town truck which resolved the CDL requirement.
Commissioner Salter provided the new registration card to the Mayor for his signature.

Commissioner Salter advised the Town sign was completed. It looks good and a letter had been
sent acknowledging and thanking Mr. Pawlikowski for painting the sign.

Commissioner Salter stated that a call had been received from Bill Schmidt regarding the culvert
that goes to the lake beside his property. Mr. Schmidt said the rock was caving in at the culvert
on the lake side and was the town’s responsibility for repair/replacement. Commissioner Fowler
advised he had checked the County GIS system, and according to the GIS system, the rip wrap
Mr. Schmidt has at that location is on the town’s right of way, not by much, possibly one or two
feet. Mayor Potter noted the County has a disclaimer on that sight which states the information
may not be accurate and did not feel you could depend on the County GIS system for the
information needed to determine lots. Mayor Potter furthered that inside thirty feet from center
of road was town right of way, outside of the thirty feet was Mr. Schmidt’s. Commissioner
Salter has contacted several businesses to obtain proposals for repair and estimates. Mayor
Potter brought up the issue of whether or not easements had been put in place when the plans for
the town were drawn up. If easements had not been set up then, the town is dealing with the
town’s drainage going through private property. Mayor Potter noted this information should be
obtainable from the Register of Deeds Office at the Court House. Commissioner Fowler noted

2of4



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners’ Meeting
April 8, 2014

the GIS system does not show an easement for that property. It was determined Commissioner
Salter would get additional proposals and estimates to be brought before the BOC for
consideration in the event it was resolved that the town was responsible for the repair. No
further action to be taken until responsibility was established.

Commissioner Fowler advised he met with Jonathan Shaw from the North Carolina Wildlife
Resources Commission (NCWRC) regarding culling of the deer. Mr. Shaw sent a letter dated
April 8, 2014, (copy attached) noting the town has an above average deer density and
recommended removal of approximately 45 deer per year to maintain a healthy population at a
socially acceptable density. The letter also recommended a change in the town’s ordinance
which prohibits hunting, to allow bow hunters to take advantage of the 4 month season, believed
by Commissioner Fowler to be September 10 through January to long bow hunt in eastern NC.
A discussion of the ordinance regarding use of a firearm followed. Mayor Potter inquired if Mr.
Shaw had provided any examples as to how other towns handle the matter. Commissioner
Fowler responded — “This way”. Commissioner Fowler stated that permission to hunt coultd be
issued property by property through Mr. Shaw as the State representative. Mr. Shaw had
provided the names of two bow hunting groups but each property owner would need to be
contacted for approval to hunt on the property. Commissioner Fowler noted this was for
information only at this time and the deer problem would only continue to get worse if no future
action was taken.

Commissioner Fowler turned the floor over the Planning Board (PB) Chairman Dennis Humenik
for the issues regarding PB — Zoning. Mr. Humenik noted the PB wanted to get a better idea
from the BOC regarding single family ownership as it applies multi-family residence such as
townhomes and condominiums. Based upon the last BOC meeting, Commissioner Fowler did
not feel the BOC was interested in the issue of ownership but the density and number of families.
Mr. Humenik said another issue the PB had discussed was how many units per acre, but this was
still being calculated out based upon setbacks, etc. Mr. Humenik noted the PB wanted to reword
sections of the ordinance which allowed the BOC to waive specific requirements without
individuals requesting a variance. Mayor Potter agreed that was an area that needed clarification.
Mr. Humenik stated the PB was hoping to get their recommendations to the BOC by Late June.

New Business:

Mayor Potter advised the BOC of the letter received from Eastern Carolina Council (ECC)
regarding membership in ECC. Mayor Potter did not believe the ECC was beneficial to the town
and suggested the town not renew their membership. It was noted the town has not maintained
membership with ECC for the last several years. Commissioner Warren made a motion that we
not become a member of ECC. Commission Fowler said he did not believe a motion was
required, the town could just do nothing. No further action necessary.

Commissioner Reports:

Commissioner Warren advised a request had been received from the North Carolina League of
Municipalities (NCLM) regarding membership and requesting a voluntary contribution to the

3of4



Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners’ Meeting
April 8,2014

Regulatory Technical Assistance Fund (REG-TAF). The cost of the membership and amount of
voluntary contribution is based upon a community’s population. Commission Warren made a
motion that we not participate in the NCLM REG-TAF. All ayes. Motion passed

Commissioner Warren provided the budget report for the period ending Mach 31, 2014,

It reflected the following: First Citizens Checking, $14,062.96; First Citizens Money Market,
$248,077.24; North Carolina Management Trust, $200,577.93; First South Bank Savings,
$136,016.18 and First South Bank CD’s, $40,662.51.

Commissioner Warren noted that the budget for the next fiscal year was currently being
formulated and requested all BOC members to get financial requests in as soon as possible,
Commission Warren said it is currently anticipated that property taxes for Minnesott Beach may
be reduced for the coming fiscal year.

Miscellaneous Information:

Mayor Potter noted that Mrs. Connie Kinney, former town clerk/manager who served the town
for over 20 years was moving to Greensboro. It was felt that it would be appropriate to have a
small reception, using the town hall and to have a proclamation for Connie Kenney Day.
Commissioner Salter made a motion that a reception and proclamation be made for Connie
Kinney. Commissioner Fowler adjusted the motion to include utilizing some funds from the
recreation budget to help cover expenses. It was agreed this was to be held April 27, 2014 from
2-4 pm. All ayes. Motion passed.

Commissioner Salter questioned the state standard for thickness of asphalt on roadways. Mayor
Potter suggested Commissioner Salter contact the State Highway Dept. to determine appropriate
thickness.

There being no further business, Commission Warren made a motion to adjourn. All ayes.
Motion passed.

St e

A atherine Hurm, Town Manager/Clerk

40f4



